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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trustees present their annual report logether with the financial statements and auditors’ reporl of the
charitable company for the 1 Septernbaer 2023 to 31 August 2024, The annual report serves the purposes of
hath a Trustees' raport and a directors' repart and strategic repart under company law,

The academy trust operates 4 primary academias in the North East lts academiss have a combined pupil
capacity of 1564 and had a rall of 1114 in the school cersus on October 2024,

Structure, gavernance and managament
® Constitution

The academy trust is a company #miled by guarantes and an exempt charily, The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary govermning documeants of the academy frust. The
trustees of Stesl River Acadermy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. The charitable company operates as Sleel River Academy.

Datails of the Trusteas who served during the year . and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and administrative detallz on page 1.

# Members® iability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
svent of # baing wount up while they are a membar, or within one yaar after they cease o ba a member, such
amount as may be raauired, not exceeding £10, for the debts and Habilities conlracted kefore they ceased to be
a membaer.

o Trustees' indemnities

The academy trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and governors from claima arising against
negllgent acts, arrors or srissions occurring whilst on academy business,

e Method of recruitment and appeintment or election of Trustees

Trustees are appointed by members in accordance with the academy trust's Addicles of Association. There is a
leggal minimum of three Trustees. The Board of Trustees assesses what expertise it requires {0 strengthen its
aclivilies and responsibilities and prospective frustees and governars are approached on that basis, Efforts are
made to find locally based individuals who meet the required criteria.

e Policies adopted for the induetion and training of Trusiees

The training and induction provided for new trustees and governors depends on their exisling experience,
Where necessary, induction and training & provided an charity, educational, legat and financial matters. All new
trustees and governars meet member of the key leadership personnel and are given a lour of the academy and
the: chance to maet with staff and students.

All trustees and governors are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgels, plans
and ather documents that they will need to undertake their role. As therg might only be one or two new trustees
or governors in any vear, induction is tailored specifically to the individual,
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guaranteq)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

& Qrganisational structure

There are four levels of governanca which are the members, the frustees and the executive team, together with
the key tzadership personnel! and local governing bodies.

The academy trust has three members, The membars determing the objects of the academy trust. The
meambers alse receive the annual report and financial statements. The mambers appaint trusteas, The overriding
rale of the members is to oversee and hold the trustees to account.

The trustaes determine the poiicies and ethos of the academy trust. They have an obligation {o ensura high
standards and hold the Locat Governing Bodies to account for the performance of schools within the academy
trust. The trustees ensure that sound and appropriate financial governance ig in place, approve the academy
trust budget and ensure high standards of probity in the management of public funds. The trusiess approve the
Annual report and Financial Statements.

The trustees appoint the Co CEOQs. The Ca CEQs are given delegated responsibility from trustees for the day to
day aperation and management of tha academy trust. The Co CEOs have overarching responsibility for the
performancs of the academy trust and its staff. One Co CEQ is also named individuaily a5 the academy rust's
Accounting Officer. The executive team supports the rale of the Co CEOs,

Reporling to the trustees, Locatl Governing Bodies are responsible for aducational standards m their partieular
schooal. In their role in monitoring standards, they consider and approve self-avaluation of the school and oversee
the school improvement plan,

The Local Governing Bodies of schools within the academy trust hold the key leadership personnet to account.
In addition to monitering the school perdormance, the Local Governing Body will identify a suitably skilled
Governor to act az Safeguarding Governor, ensuring that safeguarding practice is in #ine with the academy
trust's safeguarding policy.

= Arrangements for setting pay and remuneratian of key management personne!

The pay and remuneration of the scaderny's key leadership personnel are 2et against national leadership spine
paint scale, reflecting national pay awards. The key leadership personnel of schools in the academy trust have
their performance appraisal carried out by the Headteacher. The Local Governing Bodies carry out appraisal of
Headleachers and makes recommendations on pay to the academy trust pay review committee. The Chair of
trustaes camies out the performarice appraisal of the Co CEQs with pay delerminad by the trusices.

a Related parties and other connecied charities and organisations

The academy trust works alongside various local authorities, The academy trust has no cannected crganisations
buit doas work with jiocal charities in purseit of the activilies defined by the abjects of the academy trust,
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strueture, governance and management (continued)

¢ Engagement with emplayeess (including disabled persons)

The acaderny trust is committed to ensuring equality of appartunity for all whe learn and work here, We respect
and vatue positive differences in race, gender, sexual oientation, ability, class and age. We strive vigorously o
remove conditiong which place people at a disadvantsge.

The academy trust considers aif application forms from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
individuals concerned. Where an existing employee bacomes disabled, every efforl is made to ensure that
ampioyment with the academy trust continues. The academy trust policy is to provide training, career
devealopment and apporlunitiss for pramotion, which areg, ag fgr as possible, identical to that for other employees.

The academy trust works with trade unions and professional associations across all cur academies and engages
in conaufiation, as required, 1o ensure (hat all aspecls of the Chardlable Company affecting its employees,
including finsncial and econamic factors, are discussed, conveyed and consulted on with them.

Objectives and activities
& Objects and aims

The academy trusl is responsible for the operation of four primary schools across Redcar and Cleveland
authority.

The academy trusl aspiras to ensure each of our schools delivers exceptional learning opportunities in thair own
way, but with shared values of learning, accountability, respecl, and integrily. Qur strong support network
ensures that although we serve children frem a disadvantaged area, they have the same opportunities and
support to sucoeed as those that enjoy mare Forlunate cirumstances. We use creativity and innovation to
broaden and deepen educational and sccial oppartunities, so that our children leave us ready o siiccaad in the
next phase of their educational journey and are prepared to participate fully in a modern workforce and a rapidly
changing world, We prepars our children to make a positive impact on sociely, have an awareness of their place
in the local community, and engage whoieheartedly in the wortd in which they five,

Each school is committed to creating a safe, happy, nurturing, and inclusive envirenment, challenging everyone
to fosier a love of learning, curiosily, and beliel in possibilities; and building a growth mindsel so that we can all
succeed, overcoming any barriers that might stand in our way,

We work hard to engage parents and carers and always seek io parlner with them in educating their children
throughout the whole educationat journey.

Steel River Acaderny Trust ensures that strong collaboration, school-tg-school suppoit, and the sharing of goad
practice is a Key driver and is valued by ali trustees, leaders, teachers and staffl within the acadermy trust. We
wark as a team to deliver the best possible education experience for every pupil within the academy trust and to
benefit the communities in which we sarve.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Objectives and activities {continued)

» Objectives, strategies and activities

1.

[ul

.

Finance.

Using the schoo! buitding condition surveys praduce s long-term plan for school maintenance, repairs, and
future developmentst.

introduce a centralised IT syatem (¢ allow the truat and schools to identify and prioritise work whilst
enstiring information is accessible to trust and schoof leaders.

Revisit unsuccessful CiF bids. RAG rate required maintenance and repairs o ensure work is prioritised
across he frust.

Review the trust estales strategy to maintain high quality, innavalive and suslainabie learning
anvironments acroas the trust.

Leadership and stalf development

Faciiitate CPD, coaching snd mentoring to schoo! and trust leaders.

Flan school inset!/CPD programme o suppart staff e meet the incraasing and complex needs of
vulnerabie children.

Curdctlum/Qutcomes

implament an oracy rich curricuium to deepen chiidren's knowledge acquisition and understanding.
Embed an enquiry-based lgarning appraach 1o all curricutum subjects to deepen knowledge and skills and
develop higher order thinking skills.

Plan and deliver highly engaging lessons which are effectively scaffelded to meet lhe neads of all pupts,
Create a highly effective trust curricutum and agsessment aystem for science, RE and one other
foundation subjact to support schools in delivering high quality provision,

Governance

Strengthen governance across the trust through tailored CPO and external qualily assurance,

Explore opportunities for future growth, build the characteristics of a successful acadamy trust and meet
the regional schaol commissioner assessment for capacily,

Organise a trust conference to develop trust identity and shared goals.

# Public benefit

The asademy trust rmakes significant contribution by its teaching and other activities to the advancement of
education for the ongoing benetit for students aged 2 — 11 serving the caichmenl areas of Redcar and Cleveland
an an open basis and set oul in thig report. Therefore, the trustees have complied with the duty under Section 4
of the Charity Act 2011 to have due regard to the public benefit guidance publishad by the Charity Cemmissian..
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STEEL RIWVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company {imited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (COMTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report
Achlevements and performance

Achlevements and performance - Attendance Data 2023 - 24

Despite our disadvantaged context we have maintained a good level of altendance and one that is abave the
nationat average, We gmpioy an attendance officer to ensure that accurale records are kept of attendance
meetings, that support and guidance can be given to vuinerable families, and when required paperwerk can be
completed prior o legal proceedings. The altendance officer supports each schoot to facilitate good altendance,
Altendance is a key performance indicator which individual schaols must repor on.

School Attendance Persistent absence | Authorised absence | Unauthorised
absence

Bankfieids 893.13% 22 12% 3.29Y%, 3.67%

Caedmon 91.78% 30,27 % 3.48% o 4.77%

Grangetown 893.4% 19.1% 4.1% 2.5%

W hale Hill 93 96% 18.24% 3.02% 3.02%

Thera are four schaols in the Steet River Acadermy Trust. CHsled judgements show that all schaols are graded as
good. Caedman Primary School and Grangelown Primary Schoal had Dfsted visits in January 2024, within the
reporting period, and both schools were graded good overall with an outstanding judgement for personal

development.

Safaguarding in each school is effective

Schoaol Schools have had planned [ Schools have had planned | is safeguarding judged as
safeguarding reviews and | single contral record effective
have taken recommeanded | reviews and scrutiny and
remedial actions have taken recormmended
ramedal actons
Bankfietds ey Yes Yeasg
Gaedmon Yes Yes Yes
Grangetown Yas Yas Yeou
Whale Hill Yes Yeos Yes

Attainment data for the academy trust schools has been made availabiz by the data company that we use to
analyse data and can be seen below —

School/Trust GLD Phonics KS1-EXS

Reading Writing Malhs
SHEAT G8% 79% 53% 58% 76%
Bankfields 73% B4% 78% T2% 85%
Caedman 64% 0% 48% A5% 5%
Grangetown 85% 8% 57% 57% G2%
Whalahill 67 % B3% §9% 56% B7%
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report {continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

School/ Trust K52 -EXS K52 -GDS

Reading  |Writing Maths GPs Reading jWriting Maths GPS
SRAT 78% 8% 73% 8% 22% 13% 31% 28%
Banklialds 88% 85% B8% B5% 30% 20% 0% 68%
Caedman 6% S4% 50% 58% 17% 8% 5% 22%
Grangetown 6% G51% 1% 71% 16% 5% 3% 13%
Whalghiil 56% B8 90% 7% 24% 17% 48% 47%

The data generated has helped the academy trust to draw comparisons for schools within the academy frust as
wall as other schools and academy trusts across the North East, giving us a clear pieture of strengths and
weaknesses and identifying key improvement pricrities for 2024-25,

n key stage 1, the number of pupils classed as disadvantaged rose sHohtly to 63% as §d the numbsar of pupils
identified as having a special education need which was 19%. it was a simttar picture for key stage 2 with
disadvantaged puplis rising to 5% and special education needs rising o 30%.

Leadership {eams in each schoel have an established framework of monitoring. challenge, and support, which is
reinforced by lhe termly reviews conducted by the trust school improvement feam, which consists of leaders
from across the trust.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee}

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUEL)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance {continued)

a Key performance indicators

The Key Performance Indicators (KP1) are set out in § different areas.

Areg 1 Clutcomes Completed annually

Area 2 Schoal Improvement Updated termiy

Aran 3 Leadarship Majorily annual, some termly updates
Area 4 Safeguarding Updatad termiy

Area b Firancial Updated termly

Araa § Govemance Lipdated annually

o Quteomes for Childran

i [Evidence”

KPP

/‘«tmmrnent & plomeaq pupits {for the most reoem year that dafa is

national disadvanliaged figures

available)

1.1 EYFS - The percentage of pupils achieving a Good Level of Development 1s |80% or above
closer {o pre-covid levels {within 5%}

1.2 YF‘ ar 1 Fhanics screening - The percentage of pupits meeting the standard  |75% or above
i5 close to pre-covid levels (within 5%) »

13 KS1 The percentage of pupils mesting the standard required in reading 73% or above
is closer o pre-covid levels (within 5%)

1.4 K31 The percentage of pupils meeting the standard reguired in writing is 70%
closear to ore covid leveals {within §%)

1.5 K31 The percentage of puplis meeting the standard required in maths is T74%
closer to pre covid lavels (within 5%)

1.6 KS2 score in reading is in ling or exceeds nakional figures Data

1.7 KS2 score in writing is in line or exceeds pational figures Data

1.8 KS2 Progress score in maths is in line or exceeds national figures Data

1.9 Ko2 attainment of SEND pupils is in fine or exceeds nationat SEND Data
figures

110 Attainment and progress of disadvaniaged pupils is in line or exceeds Data

Sechool improvement:

KPl 2

The guality of education is of & consistantly good standard
2.1 The curriculum is ambitious, knowledge and skills are coherently Dats
planned and sequenced, meet the needs of all pupils, including those Reports from SIT
with SEND and disadvantaged in all subjects Roviews
22 Teachers have sound subject knowledge, check pupils’ understanding Reports from Reviews
systematically, create an envirormen that focuses on pupils and plan Pata
teaching to halp pupils remember long-term the content they have been Assessment records
laught, Monitoring records
23 Assasament is used well lo help pupils embed and use knowledge Assessment Records
fluently, informs teaching, identifies misconceptions ard provides clear Data
direct feadback Monitoring records
KPI3 Each Bchool judged as Good ar Quistanding by Ofsted Ofsted Reports
KP4 Each School judged as Good or Outstanding in SEF School's SEF
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REFORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic report {continued)

Achievements and performance {continued)

KPPl & Schoal impravement increasingly led by syatem leaders SIT Reviews
LT monitoring
5.1 An extarnal raview, alongside a peer review, has been undertaken within FH Reports
the fast 12 months within the Academy
5.2 Subject Leaders have had appropriate professional development CPD Records
apportunities through CPD or Trust cellaboration Nelwork maeetings
Menitoring Records
5.3 Every Ctass Teacher has had appropriate support and training to develop  |CPD Records
theit subject expertise and pedagogical knowledge, Observation Records

coaching records

Leadeiship.

Trust Board members and LGB governors clearly understand their
indlividuat retes and rasponsibilities and are effective in their challenge
and support

6.1 Trust Board and LGP Members are well informad of the cdrrent SEL and HT Reports
performance of the school through performance and Standards Meelings  [TB/LGB Minutes
6.7 External Reporl on HT Performance Managemeant shared with Trust Performance review
Board and LGB, Targets are mel ang new challenging largets are st reparts
Minutes of TR/LGE
meetings
6.3 Appropriate CPD s sourced to nurture staff and for succession planning CPD Records
6.4 trmproved staff attendance from 22/23 figures Attendance records

HT reports to TR/LGE

KR7 External assessment

7.9 Leadarship is &t least good in the Academy as judged by Ofsted Ofsted Reporis
SEF
External raports
7.2 Leadarship is at least good in the Academy as judged by exlernal Ofzted Reparts
validation Extarmnal consultant
renorts
et Welfare, behaviogdand Safequarding
KE 8 TAlendance figures are at least in ling with national figures Atendance Data
KPE3 An externalfinternal review of safeguarding has taken place, with the Safeguarding Report
report shared with the Trust Board
KPE10  [AH staff have underlaken training relevant to their role, as planned Training logs
programme of CPLD and directed by the Trust Safeguarding Team SG Team Minutes
KPITT  [An annua, external Health and Safety audit has been completed, with HM&S reports
follow-up acttons completed Reports to TB/ALGE
KPR 12 [Permanent Exclusion and Suspension fgures remain low ang do net HT reparts o TB/A.GB

exceed national figures (2.4% suspensions, 0.04% permanent
exclusionsg)

KPL13 Al children t have access to opportunities beyond the curriculum e.g. HT reports to LGB
trips, residentials, cormpelitive aparts, thealre vigits efe. Curricuium planning
KPPt 14  |All schools to ambed therapeutic strategies to support MHWE MHWE termiy report

Behaviour datafrecords

s Finance

All staff have maintained a minimum reserves leve! equivalent to one Trust Financial Records

momh's $talfing costs in the current year
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2024

Strategic report (continued)

Achisvements and performance (continged)

KPI 16 A financiai plan is in place for all schools with a carry forward batance of Budgel plans
20% of tolal income ar more Financial plans
KPE17 (Al schools have a cosletd premises plan for maintenance, repairs and Premisas plans
upgeades
KPI 18 |Total staffing costs do not exceed 80% of schools' overall budgest Budget plans
Benchmarking data
KPPt 19  1Cost of school leaders does not exceed 15% of schools' overall budget Bucdge! ptans
Benchmarking data
KPE20  iThe required infarmation regarding Pupil Premiue mpact arnd plarming Pupit Fremium Strategy
has been published on the website and reported to LGBs/Trustees Statements
TBAGE minules B
KPE21  |The required information regarding Sport Premium impact and planning Sports Preamium Strategy
has been published on the website and reported o LGBs/Trustees Minutes of LGB/TB
meetings
KRl 22 | To have positive internal and external audit reports across the year. The Audit reporls

Irust 1o a8 going contem

3 : nidovernance : K S
KPEZ23 1A range of skills are covered by membars of the Trust board Completed skills audit
KPP 24 1The Trust Demonstrates financial prabity in all aspacts of Trust finance Internal/extarmal audit
{audit reports have all elemaents highlighted in green or amber) reparts
KP1 25 [Consistent and robust finance performance is maintained in all schools Financial reports
Audit reports
Budget plansg
KPL26  [Aninternal auditis completed by il LGRs and trust board to evaluate Internal audits and action
ovarall performance plans

e Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expeactation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operationat existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, i
continies to adop! the geing concern basls in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adaption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial review

The financial results of Steel River Academy Trust are deialled in the following pages. H is congidered that
finances are sound. The principal financial management policies adopted are laid down in the Academy Trust
Handbook publishad by the ESFA.

The principal funding source is GAG income from the ESFA. All expenditures of the GAG income are planned to
fulfit the objectives and slrategies of the trust.

The acaderny trust accounts show that cash balances have been maintained during the year. The lrusiees and
school leadership team have reviewad revenus and capilal expenditure across the schools,

The KPis are reviewed monthly, and the Schools Resource Managemant Self-Aszessment Tool has heen usad
to inform school staffing and resource management plans.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company timited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT (CONMTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Strategic repornt {continued)

Schanis have invested in building improvements, computer equipment and infrastructure, to imprave provision in
the classroom.

During the year ended 31 August 2024 the trust had a total income of £8,.817k over the four schools. Total
rescurces expended were £10,063% leading to net expenditure being £246k.

Al 31 August 2024 the net book value of the lixed assets was £6,200k, The assets were used exclusively for
providing education and associaled support services o the pupils of Steel River Academy Trust,

o Reserves policy

Schools within the academy trust are expected to set and maintain an in-year balanced budget where costs ars
met from income each year. Accumulated! reserves can be utilised, subject to the provision of this policy. Any
forecast in- year surplus will be reviewed by the boecd of trustees, aocounting officer, and chief financial officer to
ensure that exisling students are not disadvantaged through the retention of excessive reserves.

Schoolz can set a deficit hudget and use current raserves to offsel the deficit and balance the budget, Schools
will have a specific reason for this, wili have writlen a business plan and will have had it agreed by both the LGB
and board of trustees. The reasons a school may want (o do this are lo maintain staffing structures for specific
vear groups, to employ specific staff to run interventions, planned capital investrrant or to support a schoal to
reduce the impact of falling numbers.

The academy trusl considers that the appropriate level of reserves for each school is equivalen! to one month's
stafling costs in the relevant financial year. Where reserves fall below this level, the central finance team will
wark with the headteachear to provide trustees with a rationale for the decision and with a plan of how reserves
will be maintained at the agreed levels ovar the next three years. This should ke in writing and approved by
trusteas. Local governing bodies wilt be consufted during the planning process.

It is anticipatad that all schools in the academy trust will hold a prudent tevel of reserves. It is agreed that the
maxirnurn jlavel of reserves can be up to 20% of the school's total income. Mowever, it is expected that sach
schoot will be reviewad on an individust basis. If the lovel of reserves excecds 20% In any ong school, it will be
expected that the schoot will have a financial plan in place regarding the spending of the reserves and this has
baen agreed by the trust board.

The acadermny trust has decided that we will not fully pool the reserves held by schoola. We will instead partially
pool reserves. In fine with ESFA guidance, i is deemed that any schooi having more than 20% of its {otal income
in reserve is excesstve. If a fully agreed robust plan is not in place regarding the spending of the reserves the
academy trust wii centralise any manies above the 20% mark.

Any reserves that are accumulated in the academy trust will be spent at the discretion of the trustees.

Total funds reserves including fixed assets stands at £8,080k, with restricted standing at £874k and unrestricted
standing at £1, 157k
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{& company limited by guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

s rvestment policy

The academy trusl holds a proportion of its surpius as cash to ensure # has sufficient quid resources to meet
the day-to-day needs of the academy trust. The academy trust has centralised separate school bank accounts
into one academy frust bank account, During the year, the academy trust cpened an instant access savings
account and placed funds through & fiked tarm deposit to take advantage of higher interest rates. This was
completad foliowing consultation with a bank invesiment adviser and trustees, i was deemed as a low-evel risk,
but one which the academy trust coutd benefit from.

The trustees will keep this under review and will seek to engure thal returns on investment made in the fulire are
maximized whilst gl maintaining lguidity.

e Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncerlainiies facing the academy trust are recorded and monitored on an operational
hasis it each school's operational risk fegistar which link into the academy trust's overall slrategic risk ragister,
The trustees have assessad the major risks to which the academy trust is axposed, in particular those retating to
the specific leaching, provision of faciliiies and other operational areas of the academy trust and its finances,
The key risks have been divided into five secliong

. Strategic and Reputational Risks
. Financial Hisles

J Estates and Compliance Risks

. Operalions| Risks

’ Safeguarding

The tustees have implemented a number of gystems to assess risk especially in opérational areas and in
relation to the control of finance. There are systerns in place o minimise rigks, including operational proceduras
{eg. vetting of new stalf and visitors) and internal financial controls, The risk register is discussed at trust beard
and committes meatings so that all trusless are aware of risk and how it is cantained.

Trustees have appolntad an internal auditor who provides a supplemantary programme of work in support of the
external audit team. The internal auditor provides assurance to trustees in respect of the academy trust's
compliance with its financial systams and operational cenlrols, This ensuras thai risks are quickly identified and
managed.

Trustees understand their responsibility to ensure the academy trusi's estate is safe, that it is compliant and well
maintained. The academy trust has appointed an externat health and safety team who carry out annual
inspactions across all the frust sites, they work with the individual school's heaith and safety lead who
disseminates information and CPD across all staif within their school. Alf health and safely reviews are reported
to the trust board who ensure that any remadial work has been campleted in the set time frame. Alongside this
gach school has a fuil compliance checklist which includes all statutory checks that should be completed plus
individual checks relevant to each schoal,

The academy trust has complated full-condition surveys of all sites including a RAAC survey. The condition
survays have heen used to complete a prioritised estates plan of works based upon identified need.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company Hmited by guarantea)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Eundraising

Each scheool undertakes fundraising events. The work does net involve the use of any commercial participalors
or prafessional fundraisers, The academy (rust adheres to all necessary legislation. Funds raised are monitored
as part of the monthly management account process as well as by each individual schoal. No complaints have
bean received in this year, All practices are compliant with Charity Commission guidance.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

As the trust has not consumed mare than 44,000 kWh of energy in this reporting periad, it qualifies as a low
energy user under these reguiations and Is not reguired to report on its emissions, energy consumption or
energy efficiency activities.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REFPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Plans for future periods

Steet River Academy Trust is committed lo improving the educational oulcomes for alt children across ail sehools
within the academy trusl. The academy trust development plan has been created with specific priorities in mind
to further develop the leadership, governance, financial and academic cutcomes of the academy trust.

The academy trust intends to fully review its cantral services to schools, to ensure that they meet current
requirements and support future requirements for academy trust growth. We are reviewing all cyelical
raintenance contracis and aim to achisve urther econamies of scale by reducing the number of contractors and
by ensuring that contracts cover all schools,

The academy trust wants to add capacity to the current school improvement team by increasing the number of
staff and levels of expertise in the team. The current leadership coaching offer will be extended to all academy
trust stafl i help develop the role of subject leaders whilst supporting new schogl improvemen! leads,

Az part of currculum development. the academy trust wanis to develop writing across all schools to raise
attainmeaent and progress of alt pupits. The academy trust will enhance learing by developing assessment for
fearning strategies, to ensure that teachers are responding o the needs of the children. The academy trust also
wiants o develop outdoor learning opportunities across schoals to enhance physical health.

The academy lrust will continue to develop parnerships working with other schoals, including looking at the
growth strategy and how we can wark with and suppart cther schoals.

The academy trust s looking to develop school sites. We are applying for CHF funding to improve school sites
across the academy trust and to ensure that all buildingz are it for purpose. The academy trust is currently
submitting CIF bids an behall of alf four schools within the academy trusl. The projects include roofing and
heating.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limi{ed by guarantee}

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Plans for future perinds (continued)

Pisclosure of information to auditors

ihsofar as the Trustees are awara:

L there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditors are unaware, and
» that Trustaes have taken all staps that they ought to have taken to make themsaelves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trusteas' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
cormpany direciors, on andg signed on its behalf by

g J Powell
(Chair of Trustess)
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Trusiees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Steel River Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate gystem of confrol, financial and otherwise. However, such a systemn is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of falture to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or foss.

As Trustess, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DIE's Gavernanoe Handbook and
competency framewaork for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Co CEQ, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controds conform with the reguirements of bath propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibililies assigned to it in the funding agreamant belween Steel
River Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are alsc responsible for reporting to the
Soard of Trustees any materal wesknesses or breakdowns in infernal control.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by quarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Statemeant of trustess’ rasponsibiliies, The Board of Trustees has formally met 3 times during the vear,

Attendance during the year at meeatings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetlings attended Cut of a possible
P Jackson 2 3
5 J Powsli (Chair) 3 3
A Ryalls 2 3
J M Sinciair 3 3
K McDonald 3 3
L Misaljevich 2 3
M A Williamson 2 3
D Large 1 1

Steel River Academy Trust maintaing a complete and up o date register of interssts and we use this in meelings
and ask trustees if thay can declare interests in decision making. Any related party transactions are disclosed in
the financial statements,

Bkilts audit including geHf-avaluations were compiated by trustees and LGB members, The results were collated,
and an action plan has been produced and shared with trustees and LGE members. Bespoke training has been
organised, timetabled, and detivered {o trustees and LGB members by the academy trust and has included
sessions on effective supporl and chaltlenge aleny with in-depth data training,

The trustees judge that they are working effectively bacause there is ¢lear evidence that, in saveral areas, the
ottcomes for pupils who are educated at Steel River Academy schools are close to previous outcomes prior to
the covid pandemic. There is a well-communicated viston and strateqy document, the academy trust and
individual schools have specific improvement plans thal are linkad 1o the academy trust slrategy.

The accounting officer and chief financial officer hold termly strategic financial reviews with each headlescher
and business manager to ensure financial stabiilty, and fnancial forward planning is taking place.

Alongside this, trustees and LGB members have access o a comprehensive training packags run by Redear
and Cleveland Gavarnor Support Service as well as access to the National Governance Association fraining
package and Governaor Mub.

The fulf trust board has met more than the recommended three times acress the year. if we include the finance,
audit and risk commitiee which has met four times and the performance and standards committes which has
also met three Ymes, trustees have had the opportunity to meet on ten occasions across the year, This has
allowed us to rmaintain effective oversight of funds.

Trust improverment plans and school improvement plans are shared with trustees and LGB members annuatly
and reviewed on a termiy basis. Co CEO's and headieachers report on the actions and outcomes.

{ssues deal with this year

. Re writing and sharing of the Scheme of delegation. This has been discussed and approved at all levels
of governance and leadership.

. tmpravement of the rigk register by moving to an electranic versios.

. Riging costs in living, including pay rises and energy rises.

. The application of CIF Bids for schoois across the Academy Trust,
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUBT
{A company limited by guarantes)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUELD)

GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

The academy trust procured a full external audil of governance through the Nationat Govarnance Association,
The review tocok pltace during the summer tarm. Meatings were held with several trustees, LGB members and
staff, board meetings were observed and attended by the reviewsr and all members, trustees, LGB members
and specific staff completed several questionnaires and self-audits. The outcomes and feadback of the audit will
not be available until the autumn term of 2024-2025.

The finance audit and risk commitiee is a sub-commitiee of the main board of truslees.

The finance audit and risk committee has been established (0 take a slrategic ovarview of the academy trust's
finances and resources, including establishing staffing structures, budget setting, firancial reporting and
maonitaring of internal controls and accourtabitily policies, i will ensurs the financial stabitity of individuat schools
and the academy trusi, The committee is responsible for recommending Tinangiat policies, goals, and budgets
that support the mission, values and strategic goals of the academy trust. The commitiee atsc reviews the
academy trust's financial parformance against #s goals and proposes major transactions and initiatives to the
board of trustees.

The principal priorties of the finance, audit and risk committes: includes being responsitle for:

. Budget setting and financial management of the academy trust, including any subsidiary or connectad
undertakirgs

' Audit and statutory financial submissions

. Monitoring implementation of performance management processes

. Staffing including pay policy, cost and deployment

. Health & safety matters

. Relevant policies

. Prochrement

Altendance during B year at meetings was as ilows:

Trustes Meetings attended Out of a possible
K McDonald 3 3
S J Powall 3 3
J M Sinclair 3 3

The performancs and standards committee is also & sub-committee of the main board of frusiees,

The purpose of the performance and standards cormmitiee is 10 ensyre that the trustees have up to date and
accurate knowledge (including bath interna!l and externai data) to make informed strategic decisions about the
quality of provision in terms of academic altainment and progress and personal development, behavicur and
wedfare. This understanding will enable them to challenge senior leaders and slaff with relevant respansibilities in
these areas.

The principat priorties of the committee include being responstble for:

. Curricutum and results analysis

. Qusality of teaching and leaming and impact on academic progress
. Safeguarding

s Special educational needs

s Closing the gap/ PPG

- Fastoral quality assurance process and outcomes

. SMCS and British values
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

GOVERNANCE (CONTIMNUED)

. Behaviour
. Stakehoider relationghips
. All azsnciated siatutory policies

Attendance during the yaar at meetings was as follows:

Trustes Meetings atandead Out of a possible
P Jackson 2 3
J M Sinclair 9 1
A Ryalls 2 3
M A Williamson 3 3

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

Az accounting officer, the Co CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good vatue in the use of
public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and widar
societal outcomeas, as well as estates safely and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
received.

The accounting officer considers how the acadetny trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
maney duriig each academic year, and repods to the board of trustees where valug for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framawork where appropriate. The accounting afficer for
the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

. Each schoo! has reviewed contracts and SLAs and CFO has pul together a conlracl register to show
which SLAs need to be adopted cenlrally with an indial timetabie put together. We have reviewed SLA'S
for the following examples -

0 Governance
0 MIS System
o Compfiance system
o Photocopying
¥ L gadership conching
. Each school has continued to devalop a premises development plan prioritising work and allowing tire (o
get value for monay. Schacls have replaced floaring, lights, 1T equipment, toilels and have redecorated.
. The acaderny trust has in place a finance poticy and procadure documant highlighting what schools need
to o when going through the procurement process to ensure value for money.
. Working closely with the headteacher at each schocl to ensure thal onee pesitions become vacant, there

i an appropriate levet of scrutiny to determine the best value in finding a replacement post.
THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable levet rather than o eliminate all risk of
fatture to achieve policies, aima and objectives. 1t can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolule
assurance of effectiveness. The systarm of internal control is based on an on-going process dasigned ta identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, io evaluate the
likelihood of thase risks being realised and the impact showld they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectivety and economically. The system of internal confrol has been in place in Steel River Academy Trust for
the year T Seplember 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financiat
slatements,
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

CAPACITY TO RANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which [he zoademy trust i3 exposed, together with ihe
operaling, financial and compliance conbrals that have bean implemanted to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
acaderny rust's significant risks that has been in place far the yaar 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up
to the date of aporoval of the annual report and financial statements, This process is regularty reviewed by the
board of trustees,

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK
The avademy trust's system of internal controf is based on a framewark of regular management informaticn and

administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability, tn
particular, it includes:

. Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annial budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trusiees
. Regular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of raports, which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
Programmes

. Setting targets to measure financial and other performance
. Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capilal investrment) guidelings
. Identification and management of rigks

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ JGT Auditors ag internal auditor.

The board of trustees have employed internal auditors to carry out specific functions, We used the Academy
Trust Handbook, our awn procedures and advice from the auditor to set the programme. The trust hired JGT
Auditors and they conducted three visits asross the year coming in once every term.

This option was chosen to give an additional level of assuranca,
The internal auditor's rele includes giving advice on financial and othar matters and pedfarming a range of

chacks on the academy trust's financial and other systems, In particular, the checks carried out in the current
period include -

. Governance Arrangaments

. Financial Planning

. Budgetary Contro!

. income Controls and Transactions

. Expenditure Controls and Transactions

' Data / IT Securily

We had three visits during the year, one in the Autumn term of 2023, one in the Spring Term of 2024 and one it
the Summer Term of 2024, Each visit highiighted risks found and an action plan to mitigate the risks. Each audit
report was shared with the finance, audit and risk commitlee tormiy and aiso with the trust board, Both the
accounting officer and the chief inancial officar reported on the actions and the progress made againsl each
acticn on a termly basis. There were no significant risks highlighted, and our overall level of assurance was rated
as substantial,

On a termiy basis the auditor reports to the board of trustees, through the finance, audh and risk commitiee on
the operation of the sysiems of contral and an the discharge of the board of trustees' financial responsibiities.
On an annual basis the auditor prepares & summary raport for the comemnittes oitlining the areas reviewed, kay
findings, recommendalions and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year-on-year
progress,
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANGE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK (CONTINUED)

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As accounting officer, the Go CEQ has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the systam of internal
cantral, During the year in question the review has been infarmed by:

» the work of the iernai auditor:

s the financial management and governance self-assessment process of the school resourcs management
sellassassment toold;

. the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenanges of the internal control framework

o the work of the external auditors;

The acsounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of infernal
control by the commiltes and & plan o addross weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system
i5 i place,

CONCLUSION

Based on the advice of the awdil and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the
opinion that the academy trust has an adegquate and effective framework for governance, risk management and
control,

Approved by arder of the members of the Board of Trustees on \7 . \’2. - ZL’\ and signad on
their behalf by -

$ J Powell | Mr J Murgatroyd
Chair of Trustees “Acfounting Officer
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Sleel River Academy Trust, | have considerad my responsibility to notify the academy
trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of materiat irregularity, impropriety
and non-campliance with terms and conditions of ali funding, including for estates safety and management,
uncer the funding agreemsnt hetween the academy frust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
constderstion | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbeok 2023, including
responsibilities far estates safely and management.

i canfirmy that | and the Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any matesial irregular or improper use of al|
funds by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding
agraament and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

| canfirm that no instances of material irregutarity, imprepriety or funding non-compitance have bean discovered
to dale, I any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notifiad to the Board of
Trustees and E5FA.

| /l

. A

Mr ¢ Murgatroyd
Kc{:ounting Officer

Data: V1AL 7 L
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

The Trusiees (who are also the direclors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trusless' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skifls Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accaptled Accourting Praclice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law reqgeires the Trustess to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the: state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that pertad. In preparing these financial staterments, the Trustees are
required lo:

o select suitable accounting pelictes arxd than apply them consistently:

® observe the methods and principles of the Charlties SORP 2819 and the Academies Accounts Dirgction
2023 to 2024,

o make judgmeants and accounting estimates that are reaaonable and prudent;

o state whather applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subjeat to any raterial departures
disclosed and explained in the financial stalements;

@ prepare the financial statemenrts an the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financia! position of
the charitable company and enable tham to ensure that the financial statemenis comply with the Companies Act
2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonabie steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irreguiarities,

The Trustees are responsible for enswring that in its conduct and aperation the charitable company applies
financiai and other contiols, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
managemeant, They are also responsthile for ensuning grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Truslees are responsible for the mairdenance and indegrily of the corporate and financiat information
inctuded on the charitable campany's website. Legislation in the Uniied Kingdam goveming the preparation and
digsemination af financial statements may differ from legiglatian in other jurisdictions.

Approved by arder of the members of the Board of Trustees and signad on its behalf by:

S

3 J Powell
(Chair of Trustees)
Date:
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUSBT
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDEMNT AUDITORS' REFPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF STEEL
RIVER ACADEMY TRUST

LINQUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the financiafl statements of Stesl River Academy Trust (the ‘trust') for the year ended 31 August
2024 which comprise the Statement of financial aclivities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and
the related netes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial repeorting framewark that
hag been applied in their preparation is applicable law, Uniled Kingdormn Accounting Standards (United Kingdam
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), incluging Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reparting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of freland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounis
Diraction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agenay.

In our apinion the financiat statements:

@ give a true and fair view of the stete of the Trust's affairs as at 31 Avgust 2024 and of its incoming
rescurcas and application of resources, ingluding its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

a have been properly prepared in accordance with United Ringdom Ganerally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

@ have been prepared in accordance with the requiremants of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academiss Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Educalion and Skills Funding
Agency.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordanoe with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (18As (UK} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for thae audit
of the financial staterments section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical
reduiraments that are relevant fo our audit of the financial statemenis in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiiities in
accordance with these requirements, We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained ig sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial staternents is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertaintias raiating to evants or
conditions that, individually or coltectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern for a pericd of at least twalve months from when the finangial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilifies and the responsibilities of the Trusiess with respect to going concern are describad in the
relevart sections of this repont.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guaranize)

IMDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF STEEL
RIVER ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises the information included in ihe Anncal repoit other than the financial statemenis
and our Auditors' report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial stalements does nat cover the cther information and, except to the
extent otherwise explivitly stated in our report, we do not express any farm of assurance conclusion thereon. Chur
responsibilly is to read the other information and, in doing so0, consider whather the othar information is
materially inconsislen! with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears ta be materiaily misstated. If we identify such malerial inconsislencies or apparant material
rmisstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a matenal misstatemant in the financial
statemants themseives. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatermnent of this athar information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.
QRINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2008

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

. the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financdial year for which
the financial stalernenis are prepared iz conzislent with the financiat statements.
a the Trustees' Heport and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirsments,
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REGUIRED TO REPORT BY EXACEPTION

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the Trustees' Report including the Sirategic Report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report {o you if, in pur opinton:

® adequate accounting records have not heen kepi, or returns adeguale for our audit have not been
received from branches notl visiled by us; or

# the financial stalaments are rat in agreemen! with the aceounting records and returms, or

. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; ar

° we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF STEEL
RIVER ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES

As explained more fully in the Slatement of trustees’ respensibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Trust for the purposes of company law) are respongsible far the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustess determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether
due to fraud or efror,

In preparing the financial staterments, the Trusiess are responsible for aszessing the Trust's ability to continue as
a going concarn, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and Lsing the going concern basis of
accounting undess the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease opérations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do &9

AUDNTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDRIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cur objectives are to oblsin reasonable assurance about whether the financial slalemenis ag & whole are free
fram material misstatement, whether due o fraud or arror, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance iz & high level of assurance, but is not 2 guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance wilht 15As {UK) will always delec! & mataral migstatemant when it exists. Misstatemenis can arize
frormn fraud ar error and are constdered material i, individually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be
expacted to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irreqularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with taws and regulations, We design procedures
in line with our responsibilites, outlined above, o detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
metuding fraud, The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstaternent in respect of irregutarities, including fraud, the audit
engagement leam;

. Obtained an understanding of the nature of the secior, including the legat and regularity frameworlk that
the Trust oparales in and how they are complying with the legal and regularidy framework

. Inguired of management and those charged with governance about their own identification and
azsessment of the risks of irregularities incluting any known, actual, suspected oy alleged instances of
fraucl,

. Discussed matters about non-compliance with iaws and regulations and how fraud might ocour including

assessment of how and where the financial stataments might be susceptible 0 fraud,

Az a result of these procedures we considered the most significant laws and regulations which have a direct
impact on the financial staterments are FRS 102, Charities SORP (FRE 102}, ESFA accounting recuirgrnents
{inciuding the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook and the Academies Accounts [Oirection},
Compantes Act 2006 and the Academies’s govemning document, We performed audit progedures to detect non-
camphiance which may have a material impact on the financial statements which included reviewing the financial
statements including the direclors report and remaining adert o new or unusual transactions which may net be in
accordance with the governing documents,

The audit engagement team identified the rsk of management override of controls and income recoghition as
the areas where the tfinancial statements were maost susceptible to material misstalement due o fraud. We
designed audit proceduras fo respond fo the risk, recognising that the risk of not detecting a material
migstatemen! due to fraud is higher than the risk of nat detecting one resutting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF STEEL
RIVER ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Audit procedurves performed included, but ware not limited to;

. testing manual jowrnat entries and other adjustments

. avaluating the business rationale in retation lo significant ar unusuatl ransactions and transactions
entered inlo outgide the nonmal course of business

. challenging judgments and esiimates

. raviewing income transactions around the year end {o look for potential "window drassing”.

A further déscription of our responsibitities for the audit of the financial staiements is focated on the Financial
Reporting Council's websile at www.fre.org.ukfauditorstesponsibifities. This description forms pat of our
Auditors’ report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solsly to the charitable Trust's membars, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
uf the Companias Act 2008, Our audit work has been underiaken so that we might state to the charitable Trusl's
menmbers those malters we are required (o slate lo them in an Auditors' report and for ne other purpose, To the
Mullest extent permitted by law, we da not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
Trust and its membears, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

{THIS REPORT HAS NOT BEEN SIGNED)
Heather O'Driscoll FCA (Seniar statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Wakions Business Advisers Limied
Chartered Accauntanis

Statutory Auditors

Maritime House

Marbour Watk

The Marina

Hartepool

TS24 QUX

Dale:
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantes)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO STEEL
RIVER ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

tn accordance with the terms of our engagermant letter dated 22 Jure 2023 and further lo the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we
have carried out an engagement to oblain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
incoma received by Steel River Academy Trust during the year 1 Saplember 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform o the authorities which
govern (herm.

This report 15 made solely to Steel River Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of aur
angagemant letter. Our work has been underiaken so that we might state to Sieel River Academy Trust and
ESFEA those maliers we are required to state in a report and for no ather purpose. To the fullest extent permittec
by faw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Steel River Academy Trust and ESFA,
for aur work, for this report, or for the conclugion we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST'S ACCOUNTING
QOFFICER AND THE REPORTING ACCOUNTARNT

The acoounting officer is respansible, under the reguirements of Steel River Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of Slate for Education dated 27 Augusl 2019 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
Septamber 2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intendad by Farliament and the financial transactions gonform to the autharities which gavern tham.

Our responsibilitins for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement ietier and the
requirements of the Academiss Accounts Direction 2023 ta 2024, We raport to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in alt material respects, expenditure dishursed and
ncome received during the year 1 Seplember 2023 to 31 August 2024 have nol been applied to purposes
intended by Parfiament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern therm.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO STEEL
RIVER ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKH.LS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

APPROACH

We conducted our engagement in-accordance with the Framework and Guide for Externat Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusls issued by ESFA. We pedormed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The cbjective of a lmited assurancs engagement is to perform such procedures as o obtain infarmation and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficlent appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might e identifled in o reasonable assurance engagameant. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Cur engagement includes examinalion, on a test basis, of evidence relevant {o the regularity and prapriety of the
Trusl's income and axpenditure,

The work undertaken to draw to our conclugion includes a review of the design and implementation of the Trust's
internal cortrols and review processes an regutarnity, supporied by detalted lesls on samples of costs incurrad by
the Trust and specific ransactions iderdified from our review.

This work included;

. Review minutes of meetings of directors

. Review Internal Assurance reports

. Review payroil for evidence of autharigation and review any extra contractual paymants
. Review a sample of purchases and expense claims

- Review lines of delegation and limits sat

. Review register of interests

. Reaview related party transactions

. Review other income to ensure in fine with funding agreement

+ Review risk register and business continuity plans

CONCLUSION

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disburged and incame regeived during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been
applied to purposes intendad by Parliament and the financial ransactions do not conforra to the authorities which
govern them.

THIS REPORT 13 NOT SIGNED

Reporting Accountant

YWaltons Business Advisers Limited
Chartered Accountants

Slatutory Auditors

Date:
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT QOF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

INCOME FROM:
Donations and capital
grants

Other trading activities
Invesiments
Charitable activities

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising funds
Charitable activitios

TOTAL
EXPENDITURE

NET
INCOME/EXPENDITU
RE}

Transfers batween
funds

NET MOVEMENT I
FUNDS BEFORE
OTHER
RECOGNISED
GAINSH{LOSSES)

OTHER
RECOGNISED
GAINSHLOSSES):

Actuarial gaing on
defined beneiit pensian
sthemes

Fengtan surplus not
racognised

NET MOVEMENT IN
FUNDS

Note

M~

&

14

20

26

268

Restricted

Unrestricted Restrictad fixed asset Total Totat
funds funds funds funds furnds
2024 2024 2024 2124 2023

£ £ £ £ £
84,078 46,588 130,677 145,396
161,278 - - 161,279 138,281
10,927 - . 10,921 2,142
37,449 9,476,433 - a.513,882 G.724,025
293,727 9,476,433 44,699 9,818,759 G413 844
24,049 - “ 24 449 26,137
249473 9,530,005 259,272 10,038,750 9824 105
273,522 9,530,005 258,272 10,062,798 9,850,242

20,205 (83,572} {212,673} (246,040) (4.36,328)

- {57,698} 57,608 -

20,285 {111,270) {154,975) {246,040) {436,398}
- 337,000 “ 337,000 1,008,000

- {385,000) - {385,000) (773.000}

20,205 (159,270) {154,975) {294,040) (201,388
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guaranteg)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
{CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funids funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
Mote £ £ £ £ £
RECONCHJATION OF
FUNDS:
Total funds hrought
foarward 1,066,559 902,724 6,414,832 8,384,155 8,686,553
Net maverment in funds 20,206 (159,270} {154,975) {294,040) {2071,3898)
TOTAL FUNDS -
CARRIED FORWARD 1,086,804 743,454 6,259,457 8,090,115 8.384, 185

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the vear.

The notas on pages 35 to 62 form parl of these financlal statementa.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantes)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 12109048

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2024

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors
Investments
Cash af hank and in hand

Note

16

17
18

Creditors: amounts falling due within one

year

NET CURRENT AGSETS

TOTAL NET ASBETS

FUMNDS OF THE TRUST
RESTRICTED FUNDS:
Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

TOTAL RESTRICTED FUNDS
UNRESTRICTED INCOME FUNDS

TOTAL FUNDS

19

20
20

20

2024

£

6,259,857

6,259 857
376,036
1,000,600
1,066,959
2,442 985

(612,737}

1,830,258

8,020,113
6,259,857
743,454

7,003,311

1,086,804

3,000,115

2023
£
6,414,832
6,41;;?;}.:
376,275
2,11 7,3:39
2493 614
(524,291)
1,969,323
8,384,155
6,474,832
902,724
7,317,556
1,066,599
8,384,155

The financial statements on pages 31 to 62 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for izsue on
and are signed on thelr behalf, by:

)7

5 J Powel
{Chair of Trustees)

Thie notes on pages 35 fo 62 form part of these financial statements.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guaraniee}

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

2024 2023
Mote £ £

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided by/{used in} operating activities 22 7,447 {141,733}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 23 {57,787} {15,470)
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE YEAR {50,380) {157,225)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2117,339 2,274,667
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 24, 25 2,066,95% 2. 117,339

The notes on pages 35 to 62 form part of these financial statements
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guaraniee)

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

Steel River Academy Trust is a charilable company limited by guarantes and registered in England
and Wales, In the event of the academy being wound up the tiability in respect of the guarantee is timited
ta £10 per member.

The registered office addreses is;

Grangetown Primary School
&t Georges Road
Middleshorough

TEE 70A

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

21

2.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
axcepl where noted), judgments dand Key sources of estirnation uncertainty, is set out balow,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Trust, which is & public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Finaneial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of frefand (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities;
Statement of Recommerded Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Repaiting Slandard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland {FRES 102)
(Charities SORP {FRS 102}, the Academies Accounis Direction 2023 fo 2024 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2017 and the Companias Act 2006,

Stee! River Academy Trust maets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102,
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainlies related (o avends or conditions that may cast gigrificant doubl on the ability of
the Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trusiees make this assessment in respect of a period
of at least one year from the dale of authorisation for issue of the fingncial atatemanis and have
conctuded that the Trust bas adequate resources o continue In operational existence for the
forgsaeable future and there are no maleriai uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a
geing concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concarn basis of accounting in preparing the
financiat statements,
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

2.

ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

incame

Al incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
prabable and the ameunt can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grapnts are included in the Statement of financial activities on 2 receivable hasis, The balance of
inceme raceived for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any parformance-
related conditions there is nob unconditional entitierment to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
antitlement ocours before income is recaived, the income is acrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it s receivable and any abatemenl in respect of the year is deductad from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capttal grants are recogrised in full when there is an dnconditional entittement to the grant, Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflacted in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are racognisad when there is entittement and are nat deferred over the life of the assat on
which they are expended.

Donations

Donaticns are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
whate the receipl is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Gther income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the axtent
the Trust has provided the goods or serviges,

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a fegal or constructive obligation to transfer econamic benefit
o a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefils will be requirad in settlement and
the amount of the abligation can be measured reliably, Expendilure is classified by activity. The costs
af each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, inciuding support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable o a single aclivity are allocated directly
to that activily, Sharad costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned hetween those aclivities on a basis conslstant with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allecaled on the basis of ime spent, and depreciatian
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes alt expenditure incurred by the Trust o raizse funds lor its charidable purposes and
includes costs of alt fundraising activilies svents and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activilies
These are costs incurred on the Trust's educationai operations, including sugport costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Trust appontioned lo charitable activities,
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

2.4 Expenditure {continued)

2.5

2.8

a7

Al resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,
Taxation

The Trusl is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule § of the Finance Act 2010
ang therefore it meets the defindlion of a charitable cormpany for UK carparation tax purpeses.

Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapler 2 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gaing are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed assels

Assets costing £1.000 or more are capilalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment,

Where tangible fixed assels bave been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
governmeant or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
ovar thair expected useful econcmic life. Where thera are specific conditions sttached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited o a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet, Dapreciation on
the relevant assets is charged dirsctly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depraciation on
such assels is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Deprecialion is provided on all tangible fixed assels other than freehold land and assels under
conslruction, at rates calcuiated to write off the cosl of each asset on a straighlline basis aver its
axpected useful life, as follows;

Dapreciation is provided on the following bases:

l.and and buildings - B0 years straight iine
Fixtures, fittings and squipment - 5 years straight fine
Cornpuier aquipment - 3 years straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed assel is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may naot be recoverable. Shortfalls between the camying
value of fixed assels and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairmant
losses are recognised in the Statemeant of financial activities.

Liabilities

l.iabilitles are recognised when thers is an obligation 8t the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit wilt be required in setflement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabdlities are recogrised al the amaount that the Trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debl or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
(A company {imited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial instruments

2.8

The Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial asseis and
financial liabililies of the Trust ard their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
maasurad at amortised cost as detailed in nate 17, Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value,

Financial liabilittes - trade creditors, accruats and other craditors are financial insttuments, and are
measuraed af amortised cost as detailed in note 19. Taxation and social security are not included in
tha financial instruments disclosure definition. Qeferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liabitity, as the cash settiement has already taken place and there is an obligation 1o deliver services
rathier tharn cash or another financial instrament,

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leasas are charged to the Statement of financial activities an & straight-
line basis over the lease term.

2.10 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are pravided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TES") and the Locat Government Pension Scheme ("LGES"). These are defined benefit schemes
and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spréad the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives wilh the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payrall. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of guadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets o assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contibubion scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGFS ig a funded multi-employer scheme and the asseis are held separalely from those of the
Trus! in separate {rustes administerad funds, Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit methad and discounted at
a rale equivalent to the current rate of return an a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at
each Balance sheef date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the currenl service costs
ang the costs of scheme infroductions, banefit changes, setilements and curtailments. They are
included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liabiity/asset is also
recogniged in the Staternent of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, caleulatad by multiplying the {air value
of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate usad to discount the benefit
obligations, The differance belween the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return
on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gaing and losses.
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

2,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUELD)

2.11 Fund acecounting

Unrestricied income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meating any of the
charitable objecls of the Trust al the discretion of the Trustees,

Restricted fixed assel funds are resources which are fo be applied o specilic capital purposes
impesed by the funders where the asset acquived or created is held for s specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/doner and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDGMENT

Estimates and judgments are comtinually evalusted and are based on historical experignce and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under lhe
clrcumstances.

Critical acoounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trusf makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom egual the related actual resuits. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significart! sisk of causing a material adjustment o the carying amounts of
asseis ard llabilites within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present valug of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the nel cost or income for pensions include the discount rate, Any
changes in these assumplions, which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liabiity, Furthermore a rol! forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been sed by the actuary in valuing the pensions fabiily at 31
August 2024, Any differences belween the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation weould impact on the carrying amount of the pension Hahility.

As explained in note 26, the actuarial valuation report as at 31 August 2024 produced an estimated asset.
In the optnion of the Trustees this asset i3 uniikely to bie reafised and therefore the Trust has not
recognised Lhis in the financial statements, Thiz has reduced the value of schema assets and an
adjustiment has been included in the SOFA to reflect this.

Fad the asset been recognised this would result in an increase in restricted funds of £1,216,000 (2023:
£831,060).
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

INCOME FROM DONATIONS AMD CAPITAL GRANTS

Donations
Capital Granis

Total 2023

INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Educational Operations

Total 2023

Restricted
Unresiricted  fixed asset Totat Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ P
84,078 15,704 99,782 48,49
- 30,895 30,895 39,4085
84,078 45,599 130,677 148,306
34,280 114,106 148, 396
Unrestricted  Restricted Totat Total
funds funds funds fuinds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
37,449 9,476,433 9,513,882 9,124,025
40,184 9083 841 9,124,028
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guaramtes)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSBT 2024

Educational Operations

DIEE/ESFA grants
Geaneral Annual Grant
Other DIE/ESFA grants
Universal infant free schoot meals
Pust Pramium
Teacher's Pay gramnt
Rates Relef
PE and sports gramt
Other DFE grants
Supplementary grant

Local authority granis

Other government grants

FUNDING FOR THE TRUST'S CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Other Government grants

Other income from the Trust's educational
operations

COVID-19 additional funding (DIE/ESFA)

tinrestricted  Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2023

£ £ £ £

- 6,686,120 6,686,120 6478277

103,833 103,833 99,137

- 1,124,039 1,124,039 1,064,317

“ 181,057 181,067 20672

" 23,360 23,360 21,818

T4,620 T4.620 74500

- 283,440 283,440 217,458

- - - 217,163

- 1,476,468 B,476,469 8,188 433

- 492,328 492,328 467,104

SEM Local authority grants - 362,418 362,416 303,503

- 39,667 39,667 22 848

“ 894,411 394,411 787,542

37,449 - 37 444 40,184

Other DFE/ESFA Covid 19 funding - 105,553 105,553 107, 866

- 105,553 105,553 107, 866

37,449 9,476,433 9,513,882 8 124,028
40,7184 $,083.841 8,124,025
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

7. INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funels funds
2024 2024 2023
£ £ E
Hire of faciities 25,280 25 280 74,186
Catering 378 379 1,139
Parentai contributions 60,400 60,400 55135
Supply leacher insurance . - 5,600
Cither trading income 75,220 75,220 53,221
161,279 161,279 139,281
Total 2023 139,281 139,281
8. INVESTMENT INCOME
Unresiricted Total Tatal
fuinds funds fuirtels
2024 2024 2023
£ £ £
Short term deposita 10,021 ' 10,921 2142
Total 2023 2142 2142
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STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ALUGUST 2024

16,

EXPENDITURE

Expenditure on raising funds:

Direct costs
Educational operations:

Direcl costs
Allocsted support costs

Total 2023

ANALY SIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES

Educational Qperations

Tatal 2022

Staff Costs Premises Cithar Total Tetal
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
- - 24,049 24,0490 26,137
5,436,342 - 445,664 5,888,006 5,468,863
2,317,103 484 920 1,350,721 4,152,744 4,355,262
7,753,445 484,920 1,824,434 10,062,799 9850242
7,532,684 517,856 1,799 403 9,850,242
Activities
undartaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
5,886,006 4,152,744 10,038,750 9,824,105
5,468,853 4,356 257 9,824,105




STEEL RIVER ACADEMY TRUST
{A company limited by guarantae)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

10.

ABNALYSES OF EXPENIMTURE BY ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

ANALYSIS OF DIRECT COSTS

Staff costs

Technology Costs
Educational supplies
Other staff costs
Educational consultancy

ANALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTS

Staff costs

Bepraciation
Maintenance of premises
Cleaning and caretaking
Rates

Energy

Catering

Technalogy Costs

Other premises costs
Governance costs

Other support costs
Other staff costs

Security

Transport

Non Educational Consuitancy
Pansion interest

Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023

£ £
5,436,342 5,060,204
72,231 56,807
179,738 194,178
62,645 60,452
135,049 107,212
5,886,008 5,468,853
Total Total
funds funds
2024 2023

£ £
2,317,103 2,482,680
254,578 340,429
122,062 134,658
236,927 166,262
23,349 22,485
165,170 2323097
405,203 388,750
89,277 75,697
174,338 137,716
21,949 20,121
76,069 78,009
22,384 31,183
24,835 23,686
138,169 123,207
124,320 100,688
(43,000} 3,000
4,358,252

4,152,744
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12,

MET INCOME/([EXPENDITURE)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible lixed assels

Net interest on defined benelit pension liability
Fees paid lg auditors for:

- audit
- other sarvices

STAFF

a. STAEE COSTS AND EMPLOVEE BENEFITS

Stall costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprese;

Redundancy payments

2024 2023

£ £

15,070 13.500
254,578 340,429
{43,000) 3,000
12,865 12,250
3,680 2,750
2024 2023

£ £
5,744,182 5451136
557,292 520,156
1,248,197 1,344,063
7,549,671 7,316,255
182,618 205,659
21,156 11,070
7,753,445 7,532 884
2024 2023

£ £

21,156 11,070
21,156 11,070
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12,

STAFF (CONTINUED)
b. SEVERANCE PAYMENTS

The Trust paid 2 severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following bands:

2024

MNa.

£0 - £25,000 2

¢. STAFF NUMBERS

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows!

2024 2023

Nao. No,

Teachers 77 gz

Administration and support 113 122

Management 16 17

206 221

d. HIGHER PAID STAFF

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding empioyer pension cosls) exceeded
E&0,000 was:

2024 2023

Mo, No.

It the band £60,001 - £70,000 2 2

in the band £70,001 - £80,000 - 1

in the band £80,001 - £9¢,600 1 3
tn the band £80.001 - £100,000 2 -

e. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The key managemenl parsonnal of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior managemesnt team as
tisted on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including empioyer pension
eontributions and emplayer national insurance cordtributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the Trust was 685 351 (2023 - £429 235},
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CENTRAL SERVICES
The Trust has provided the foliowing central services to its academies during the year:

hiran resources

tinancial services

legal services

educational support services
others as arising

£ & 8 @ =

The Trust charges for these services on the following basis:
At 6.55% (2023 5.588%) of GAG income.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as foliows:

2024 2023

£ £

Caedmon Primary School 100,238 82 574
Bankfields Primary Schaol 86,255 69,108
Whale Hill Primary School 141,566 116,488
Grangetawn Primary School 108,121 92,053
Total 436,880 360,228

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES
During the vear, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefiis (2023 - EMIL).

During the year, retirement benefits were accruing to ne Trustees (2023 - 7) in respect of defined banalit
pension achaermes.

Duting the year ended 31 August 2024, ne Trustes expenses have been incurred (2023 - £NIL},

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

In accordanse with normal commercial practice, the Trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustess
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omigsions oceurring whilst en academy
business. The insurance provides cover up to £28 milion on any one claim and the cost for the year
ended 31 August 2024 was £1,281 (2023 - £288). The cost of this insurance ig included in the total
insurance cost,
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+7.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost
ALl Beptember 2023
Additions

At 31 August 2024
Depreciation

Al 1 September 2023
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2024

Net hook value

AU T31 August 2024

At 31 August 2023

DEBTORS

Due within one year

Trade dabtors

VAT repayabla

Prepayments and accrued income

Furniture

Freehold and Computer
property  eduipment equipment Total
£ £ £ E
6,690,893 432,029 408,827 7,631,749
50,602 29,914 19,087 99,6803
6,741,495 461,943 427,914 7,631,352
514,205 255,648 347,064 1,116,917
132,328 88,417 33,835 254,578
646,531 344,065 380,699 1,371,495
6,004,964 117,878 A7,015 6,259,857
fi,176,688 176,381 61,763 6,414,832
2024 2023
E £
530 a21
70,459 47,156
305,037 328,598
376,036 376,275
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19.

CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS

Fixed term depaosit account

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade craditars

Other taxation and social security
(ther creditors

Acerdals and deferrad income

Defarred income al 1 September 2023
Resources deferred during the year
Amaounts released from previous periods

2024 2023
£ £
1,000,000
2024 2023
£ £
127,022 598
123,191 156,127
146,495 93,139
216,029 274,427
612,737 524,291
20624 2023
£ £
75,496 66,964
76,798 75,496
(75,496) (66,964)
76,798

75,496

Deferred ingome consists of rates reliel and universal infant free school meals jor the 2024.2025
academic year recaived in advance, along with some other smail deferred values,
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STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Galns/ 3 August
2023 Income Expenditure infaut (Losses) 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 1,066,599 293,727 {273,522) - - 1,086,804
Rastricted
general funds
zeneral annual
grant 902,724 6,686,120  (6,787,692) {57,628) - 743,454
UIFEM . 103,833 {103,833) - . -
Pupi premium - 1,111,106 (1,111,106} - - -
Teachers pay - 181,057 {181,057) - .
Rates relief - 23,360 {23,308 - -
£t & Sporl grant 74,620 {74,620) - - -
QOther DFE,
grants - 388,993 (388,593) - - -
Non DFE grants . 39,667 (39,667) . -
Higher
educational
needs - 362,416 {362,416) - “ -
Other locat
authority grants - 505,261 {505,261) - - -
Pension reserve - - 43,000 - (48,006 n
902,724 8,476,433  (9,530,005) {57,688} {£8,000) 743,454
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STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains! 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
inharited o
Conversion 5,789,228 u (119,618) - - 5,669,612
OFE group
capital grants 127,335 46,599 (32,457) - - 141,477
Capitat
expenditure from
GAG AET 810 - {77,176} 57,698 - 438,432
Private sacior
spansarship 40,459 - (30,023) . - 10,436
6,414,832 46,599 {(259,272) 57,698 - 6,259,857
Total Restricted
funds 7,317,556 $,523.032  (9,789,277) - (48,000, 7,003,311
Total funds 8,384,155 9,816,759 (10,062,799) . (48,0003 8,090,115

The specific purposes for which the funds are lo be applied are as follows:

General annual grant - this is the monay provided 1o the academies for normal school running cosls.

The funding for universal free school meals was spent on providing these meals.

The pupil premium is paid based upon the number of pupils with sarvice parents or who are entitled to
frae school meals. This funding has paid for support assislants within classrooms and addiional
FREOUICES.

The teacher pay and teacher pension awards have baen spent on teaching wages.

The rates reclaim is used to pay rates.

The PE and Sport grant has been used on trips and activities and the salaries of support assislanis
involved in those activities.

The funding for higher educational needs has been usad o pay for classroom assistants.
The eatly yaars funding has funded staff in these year groups.
The capital transferred on conversion represents the land and buiidings and other assets transferred io

the school at il consideration from Redear & Cleveland Borough Councit upon conversion to an
Academy. This fund is being depreciated in line with the assats represented.
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20.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Other capital grants are governmant funds received for the purchase of capital equipmaent and expenditure
on repair projecls. The amounl carried forward represents assets purchased in the period at their net boak

value and funding yet to be spent.

tnder the funding agreement with the Secretary of State. the Trust was not subject to & limit on the

amount of GAG it could carry farward at 31 August 2024,
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20.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Comparative infurmmation in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestrictad
funds

General Funds

Restricted
general fundsz

General annugl
grant

LIFSM

Fupil premium
Teachers pay
Fates refiaf

PE & Sport gramnt
Other DFE
arants

Higher
educational
reeds

Other local
autharily grants

Pension reserve

Balance al

Hafance at

1 September Transfers Gainsg/ 31 Augtest
2022 income  Expenditure infout {Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
260,694 215,857 {108,956) - - 1,086,599
88,672 6,479,277 (6,528,603} {34, 562) - B02, 724

- 98,137 {99,137} - - -

- 1.064.311  (1.064,317) - - -

20672 {20,672) - -

- 21,918 (21,918 .

- 74,600 (74,500) . .

- 536,484 {B36,484) - - -

- 22,8458 (22,845) - - -

- 303,593 (303,583 - - .

- 461,104 {461, 1714) - - -

- - (235.000) - 235,000

986,612 9,083.841  (8.368,167) (34,562) 235,000 902 724
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Balance at Balance at
1 Sepltamber Transfers Gains/ 31 Augusi
2022 Income  Expenditurg indout {Losses) 2023
£ & £ £ E £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Irherited on
Conversicn 5987770 - (198 542) - - 5,789 228
0OFE group
capital grants 778904 99,408 {60,024) - » 127,335
Capital
expenditure from
GAG 517,435 . (94, 187) 34,562 - 457,810
Private sector
sponsorship 585,084 14,701 (28,326} - - 40,458
6,638,243 114,108 (372,078) 34,662 - 6,414,832
Tetal Restricted
funds 7884 855 9197947 (9,740, 246) - 235,060 7,317,656
Tatal furids 8,585,553 8413844 (9,850,242} - 235,000 8.384, 155

Total funds analysiz by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 ware alfocaled as follows:

2024 2023

£ £

Caedman Primary School 590,235 893,105
Bankfields Primary $chool 163,786 211,353
Whalg Hill Primary Schaool 267,219 438 045
Girangetown Primary Schogl 447731 822,881
Ceniral services 361,287 202 969
Tatal before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 1,830,258 1,969,323
Restricled fixed asset fund 6,259,857 6,474,832
Total 8,090,115 8,384,155
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21.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)
TOTAL COST ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the yvear was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Casdmon
Frimary School 1,137,787 419,442 60,746 343,922 1,961,897 2088365
Bankfelds
Primary Schoal 975,828 400,196 22,471 429,178 1,827,673 1.667.700
Whale Hill
Primary School 1,800,993 762,723 32,563 581,008 3,177,287 3,010,655
Grangetown
Primary Schaot 1,270,329 611,641 61,483 445,356 2,388,779 2215617
Central services 251,405 123,131 2,476 758,573 452,585 BZ7 476
Trust 5,436,342 2,317,103 179,739 1,875,037 9,808,221 9,509,813
ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS SETWEEN FUNDS
ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - CURRENT PERIOD
Rastricted
Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - “ 6,269,857 6,259 B57
Current assets 1,086,804 1,356,191 - 2,442,005
Craditors due within one year - (612,737} - (612,737)
Total 1,086,804 743,454 G,259,857 8,090,115
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22,

3.

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS (CONTINUED)

ANALY SIS OF NET ABSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR PERIOD

Restricted
Lirresincted Restricted  fixed assel Tatal
funds funds funds ftinds
2023 2023 2023 2023
E £ £ £
Tangible fixed aasols 6,414, 832 6,414, 837
Current assats 1,134,368 1,362, 246 - 2,483,614
Cradilors due within one year {64, 7649) {458, 522) (524,287)
1,068,599 Qo2 724 6,474,832 8384, 155

Toial

RECONCILIATION OF NET EXPENDITURE TO NET CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACHVITIES

Net expenditure for the period (as per Stalement of financial activities)

Adjustments for:

Deprecintion

Capital grants from {E and oiher capital income

Interest receivable

Cefined benefit pension scheme cost less contrihutions payable
Decrease in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Net cash provided by/(used in} operating activities

CASH FLOWS PROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of tangible fixed assats
Capital grants from DfE Group
interest receivable

MNet cash used in investing activities

2024 2023
£ £
(246,040) (436, 395)
254,578 340,428
(30,895) (99,4085)
{10,921) (2,142)
(48,000) 235000
239 33,580
88,446  (2712,816)
7,407 (1471.753)
2024 2023

£ £
(99,603}  (117.077)
30,895 99,405
10,921 2142
{57,787) (15.470)
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26.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AMALY SIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2024 2023
£ £
Gash in hand and at bani 1,066,959 2717 339
Fixed term deposit accouni 1,000,000 “
Tatal cash and cash equivalents 2,065,959 2117339
AMALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEST
At 1
September At 31
2023 Cash flows August 2024
£ £ £
Cash af bank and in hand 2,117,339 {1,050,380) 1,066,959
Fixed {erm deposit account - 1,060,400 1,000,000
2,117,339 {50,380) 2,066,958

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemaes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England
and Wales {TP8) for academic and related stalf; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching stafl, which is managed by Teesside Pension Fund, Both are multi-employer defined henefit
sehernes,

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the pericd ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2022,

Conmtributions amounting to £146,495 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023 - £93,140)
and are included within creditors.

TEACHERS' PENSION SCHEME

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TRS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pengion Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automalic for fuli-time {eachers in
academies, Al teachers have the option to opt-oul of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded schema o which bolh the member and employer makes condributions, as a
pereentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and cther pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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PENSION COMMITMENTS {(CONTINUED)
VALUATION OF THE TEACHERS' PENSION SCHEME

The Government Actuary, using norma! actuarial principles, conducts a format achearial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Sarvice Pensions (Vatuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recoynised
and managed approgriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions,

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of fulure costs, design of
benefits ancd many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TRPS was carried out as at 31 March
2020. The valuation report was pubfished by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the
BOAPE rate, sat by HMT, applying & notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPL The
key elements of tha vatuation outcome are:

. employer conlribution rates sel at 23.68% of pensionable pay {including a 0.08% administration
tevy). This Is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control
result is such thal no change in mamber benefits is needed.

v total scheme liahilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,100 million and notional assets (estimated {uture conlributions
toaether with the notional ivestmenls held &b the valuation date) of £222.200 milion, giving a
notional past service deficit of £39,800 miltion

Thea result of this vatuation will be implemanted from 1 April 2624 The next valuation resull is due to
be implemanted from 1 Aprit 2028,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £861,210 (2023 - £839,008).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pengions website
{hitps:/rvww teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-repart. aspx).

Undar the definitions set oul in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pengion scheme. The
Trust has gocounted for its contributions o the schema as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The
Trust has set out above the information availahle on the schemae.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME

The LGPE is a funded defined benefit pension schame, with the assets held in separate trustee-
adrministerad funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £392,000 (2023 -
E369,0005, of which employer's comributions totailed £295,000 (2023 - £278000) and employees’
contributions totalled £97 000 (2023 - £87,000). The agreed contribution rates for fulure years are 17.5 per
cent for employers and between 5.5 {0 12.5 per cent for employees.

As deseribed innote the LGPS abligation relates to the employees of the Trust, who were the employees
transferrad as parl of the conversion from the maintained school and new employaes who were efigible to,
and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on
conversion represents their curmulative service at both the predecessor school and the Trust at the
balance sheel date,

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantse that, in the
event of academy closwre, outstanding Lacal Gavernment Pensien Scheme liabilities would he met by the
Department for Education, The guarantes came into force on 18 July 2013.
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase for pensions in paymeant/infiaiion

Riscount rate for scheme liabiiities
Inflation azsumption (CR)

2024
Ya

3.658
2.65
5.00
2.65

2023
%

P Lo
LYo B L T < T
=y 2N

[
n

The current morality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortakity rates,

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Reliring today
Males

Fermales

Ratiring in 20 vears
Males

Femates

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

[iscount rate +0.1%

Discount rate «0.1%

Mortalily assurmption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CHY rate +C.1%

CPlrate -0.1%

SHARE OF SCHEME ASSETS

2024 2023
Years Yaars
20.4 208
23.4 235
21.2 21.3
24.9 250
2024 2023
£000 000
(138) (122)
135 122
(215) (191}
215 181
129 103
{128) {103)
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was;

At 31 AL 37T August

August 2024 2023

4 £

Equities 4,397,744 4,052,230

Property 1,610,440 1,276,730

Cash and other liquid assets 185,820 222 040

Perecognise asset {385,600} (773,000)

Total market value of assets 5,809,000 4,778,000

The aotual return on scheme assets was £675,146 (2023 - £148,000).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financia| Activities are as follows:

2024 2023

£ £

Current sarvice cost 290,000 510,000

Intergs! income 300,600 240,000

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Finanacial Activities 580,000 750,000
Changes in the present value of (he defined benefil obligations were as follows:

2024 2023

£ £

At 1 September 4,778,000 5,438,000

Current service cost 290,000 510,600

Interest cost 257,000 243,600

Emploayes contributions 97,000 91,600

Actuatial gains (6,000} (7.458,000)

Benefits paid {53,000) (445,000}

At 31 August 5,363,000 4,778,000
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27.

28.

PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Changes in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2024 2023

£ £

At 1 Beptamber 4,778,000 5,435,600
tnterest income 360,000 246 000
Actuarial gains/{losses) 331,000 (451,000)
Employer comtribiutions 295,000 278,000
Employes conlributions 27,000 91,008
Benefits paid (53,000} {46,000)
Berecoghise assel {385,000) (773,000
At 31 August 5,363,000 4,778,000

The actuartal valuation report as al 31 August 2024 produced an estimated assel as a resuil of changes
in discount rates used in the valuation. As the asset is unlikely to be realised the Trust has not recognised
this in the financial statemenis. This has reduced the value of scheme assets and an adjustmen! has

been included in the SOFA o refiect this,

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2024 the Trust had commitmants to make future minimum lease payments under non-

canceilable operating leases as follows;

2024 2023

£ £

Mot later than 1 year 8,526 7,864
lL.ater than 1 year and nat fater than 5 years 6,517 10,851
15,043 18,815

MEMBERS' LIARILITY

Each membar of the charitable company underlakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while hefsha i= a member, or within one year afler ha/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be reguired, not excesding £10 for tha debts and labilties contracted

before he/she ceases to be a member,
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28,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Qwing to the nature of the Trust and the compasition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from ool
public and grivate sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations i which the
trustees have an mterest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Acadermy Trust Handbook, including notifying the #5FA of ail transactions made
an or after 1 Aprit 2018 and obtaining their appraval where required, and with the Trust's financial
requiations and narmal procurement procedures relating W cannecled and related party transactions.

Mrs. P Palrie, wife of Mr. M Petrie {Member of the Trust Baard), is employed by the tust as Co Sanior
Executive Leader of the Trust. Mra. Petrie’s was initially a founding Head Teacher of the trust which pra-
dated Mr. Pelrie becoming a member of the Trust Board. Mrs. Petrie has sinca been appointad by the
Trust Board o he a Co Senior Executive Leader of the Trust. This appointiment was made after a
consulitation with the fulf trust board and Mr. Petrie was nal part of any discussion, Mrs. Petrie is paid o
line with the stardard national pay scale and has received no special treatment as a result of the
relationship to a mambaer.

Mrs Murgalroyd, the wife of Mr Murgatroyd (Co Senior Executive Leader), is employed by the Trust as an
adminstrator. Mr Murgatroyd was not involved in the decision making process regarding the appointment.
Mrs Murgatroyd is paid in ling with the standard naticnal pay scate for her role and receives no special
treatment as & result of her relationship with the director.

Page 652



